





2020/2021 Health Care Options Planner

Probate Judges & Employees







Kevin Lembo State Comptroller fb.com/ComptrollerKevinLembo @ComptrolLembo

Welcome!

This year is no ordinary Open Enrollment. We're glad to tell you about expanded benefit features and a new health plan option.

If you're currently enrolled in an Oxford/UnitedHealthcare plan, your coverage will be transitioned automatically to a plan with Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield (Anthem) with the same plan design. We're also introducing a new plan option. So, be sure to review all the plans available to you before deciding if you'll stay with your current plan design.

The theme this year and beyond is QUALITY. The state will provide you with the benefits and resources you need to find the highest-quality doctors and health care facilities near you. High-quality choices mean better health outcomes for you and your family.

Here are highlights of what's changing effective October 1, 2020:

- New Quality-Focused Plan Option: We're working with Anthem to deliver access to the highest-quality care and the best experience for you! Oxford/UnitedHealthcare plans will not be available after September 30, 2020. As part of this transition, we are introducing the State BlueCare Prime Plus POS plan. It's a new plan option that offers access to high-performing doctors and specialists in Connecticut—at lower premiums!
- CT Care Compass: Our new website provides access to all your health benefit materials and contact information: CareCompass.CT.gov.
- Health Navigator: Speak with a state plan Health Navigator by phone, the web, or online messenger chat to get help with your benefits. Need help finding the highest-quality doctor in your area? Have questions about your benefits? Having trouble getting care? This service is available to support you through all that and more.
- Networks of Distinction: Under this new program, we have identified high-quality, cost-effective doctors and care locations that offer comprehensive care for many common medical tests and procedures and health conditions. Those offering the highest-quality care will be noted as "Centers of Excellence." Providers in the Networks of Distinction can coordinate your care throughout the entire treatment process to help you get the best care possible. Finally, you can earn incentives of up to \$1,000 by going to a Network of Distinction for certain common medical tests and procedures, and health conditions. The largest incentives will be available for care at Centers of Excellence.
- **One Card:** This year you have one card that contains all the information you need to access your medical and prescription benefits.

We're working to make this transition as easy as possible. But we need you to learn about all your choices and select the health plan that delivers the best value for your household.

Everyone wins when each of us makes smart choices about our health care.

Kevin Lembo Connecticut State Comptroller

Table of Contents

What's New Starting October 1, 20201	L
What You Need to Do2	2
Eligibility for Coverage	3
Medical Coverage4	1
Using Your Benefits	3
Health Enhancement Program10)
Prescription Drug Coverage13	3
Dental Plan Coverage14	1
2020/2021 Payroll Deductions16	5
Frequently Asked Questions17	7
Non-Discrimination Policy18	3
Your Benefit Resources19)

What's New Starting October 1, 2020

Updated Medical Plan Options

- Anthem will be the only carrier administering our medical plans.
- If you're currently enrolled in an Oxford/ UnitedHealthcare medical plan and make no changes, your coverage will be transitioned to an Anthem plan with the same design.
- You'll have a new plan option: State BlueCare Prime Plus POS plan. Providers in this network commit to strict care experience and quality measures. By agreeing to see these high-quality providers, you'll get excellent care and pay lower premiums. Learn more about the State BlueCare Prime Plus POS plan on page 5.

Oxford/UnitedHealthcare Plans Not Available After September 30, 2020

If you're currently enrolled in an Oxford/UnitedHealthcare plan and make no changes during Open Enrollment, you'll be automatically transitioned to a similar Anthem plan (POS, POE, etc.). If you are happy with your current plan design, you do not need to do anything. However, it's a good idea to review your plan options—including the new State BlueCare Prime Plus POS plan—and consider if automatic enrollment is the right decision for you.

Dental Plan Enhancements

The benefits available under the Enhanced and Basic plans have expanded! Learn more on page 15.

Medical and Dental Plan Premiums

Premiums for the medical and dental plans are changing. See page 16.



Care Compass

Our new website, dedicated to the state health plan, provides access to all your health benefit materials and contact

information at **CareCompass.CT.gov**. Learn more on page 8.

Sydney Health Mobile App

Anthem's Sydney Health mobile app makes it easier to find out about your health benefits, look up claim status, access a digital ID card, or find an in-network doctor or care location. Download the Sydney Health app from the App Store[®] or Google Play[™]. Learn more on page 9.

HEALTH NAVIGATOR Health Navigator

The Health Navigator service – available by phone, web or online messenger chat – is here to help you navigate your state health plan benefits. Health Navigators can assist with finding providers in the Network of Distinction, answering questions about benefits, and troubleshooting problems. The support you'll receive from Health Navigators will be highly coordinated with the member services teams at Anthem, Cigna, CVS Caremark and Care Management Solutions to make it easier for you to navigate your benefits and access the right care for you. Learn more on page 8.

Networks of Distinction

The State of Connecticut has identified some of the highest-quality doctors, hospitals and medical groups in the state for many common procedures. Doctors and care locations that have a proven track record for delivering high-quality, cost-effective care are designated as a "Network of Distinction" under your health plan. The highest-performing providers among them have been designated "Centers of Excellence." If you use a Network of Distinction, you'll get excellent care and have the opportunity to earn a cash incentive of up to \$1,000! Use the Health Navigator service to find high-quality doctors and care locations under the State of Connecticut Network of Distinction program. Learn more on page 9.

One ID Card

No more fumbling for the right ID card when you need care. We're introducing a single ID card for both medical and prescription drug coverage. New ID cards will be mailed to your home in September, so keep an eye on your mailbox! You can download a copy of your ID card on **anthem.com/statect** or through the Sydney Health app.



Virtual Appointments Available!

For only a \$5 copay, you can see a doctor, licensed therapist or psychiatrist on your video-enabled smartphone, tablet or computer. See page 9 for more information.

What You Need to Do

Current Employees

Open Enrollment Is September 14 Through September 30, 2020.

Now is your opportunity to review and learn about your health care benefit choices. It's a good time to take a fresh look at the plans, consider how your and your family's needs may have changed, and choose the best plan option for you.

If you are currently enrolled in an Oxford/UnitedHealthcare plan, visit **CareCompass.CT.gov** to confirm that your providers are in the Anthem network. If not, work with Health Navigator to find an in-network provider.

During Open Enrollment, you may change medical and/or dental plans, add or drop coverage for your eligible family members, enroll if you previously waived coverage, or change your medical and dental premium deductions to pre-tax (see the Section 125 Cafeteria Plan Agreement in the Benefits Resource Library).

Changes to your elections for 2020-2021 can be made online by clicking on the Benefits tab in MyPaychex.com.

If your password has expired, please refer to PCA Policy 308 for instructions on managing your account.

What Happens if I Don't Make a Change?

If you're currently enrolled in an Oxford/

UnitedHealthcare plan, you'll be automatically transitioned to an Anthem health plan with the same benefits and plan design.

If you're currently enrolled in an Anthem plan, your coverage will continue as is, with applicable 2020/2021 premiums.

If you are not enrolled, your coverage will continue to be waived.

IMPORTANT! We're introducing a new, more affordable quality-driven plan option. So, be sure to review all the plans available to you before making a final decision.

New Employees

To enroll for the first time, follow these steps:

- **1.**Review this Planner, and choose the medical and dental options that best meet your needs.
- 2. For instructions on how to enroll, refer to the Online Payroll and Benefits System User Guide in the New Hire Packet or see Policy #308 in the PCA Policy Manual located on the Probate Intranet.
- **3.**Enroll online within 31 calendar days of the date you were hired.

If you enroll as a newly hired employee, your coverage begins the first day of the month following your hire date. For example, if you're hired on October 15, your coverage begins November 1.

The elections you make now are effective through June 30, 2021, unless you have a qualifying status change (see Midyear Coverage Changes).

Midyear Coverage Changes

Once you make your coverage elections, you cannot make changes for the 2020/2021 plan year unless you have a qualifying status change, which include changes in:

- Legal marital/civil union status, including marriage, civil union, divorce, death of a spouse and legal separation
- Number of dependents, including through birth, death, adoption, and legal guardianship
- Employment status, including events that change your or your dependents' employment status and eligibility for coverage, such as:
 - Beginning or ending employment
 - Starting or returning from an unpaid leave of absence
 - Changing from part time to full time or vice versa
- **Dependent status**, including events that cause your dependent to become eligible or ineligible for coverage
- **Residence**, including moving out of the area you live in now that makes it difficult or impossible to see network providers
- Loss of coverage, including events that cause you or your dependents to lose coverage from another source

If you have a qualifying status change, you must contact the PCA Financial Services Department **within 31 days** of the date of the event. The change you make must be consistent with your change in status. For example, if you have a child, you can add him or her to your current health care coverage, but you can't change the plan(s) in which you are enrolled. All coverage changes are effective the first day of the month following the date of the event.

If you experience a change in your life that affects your benefits, contact the PCA Financial Services Department. They'll explain which changes you can make and let you know if you need to send in any documentation (for example, a copy of your marriage certificate).





Eligibility for Coverage

Dependents you can cover under your plans generally include:

- Your legally married spouse or civil union partner
- Your children:
 - Medical coverage through the end of the year they become age 26
 - Dental coverage through the end of the month they become age 19¹
- Children living with you for whom you are legal guardian (to age 18) unless proof of continued dependency is provided

Coverage eligibility for disabled children beyond age 26 for medical or age 19 for dental must be verified through Anthem. Contact their Enhanced Dedicated Member Services team at 800-922-2232 for details.

Documentation of an eligible relationship is required when you enroll a family member.

Visit **CareCompass.CT.gov** for details about dependent eligibility.

Make Sure You Cover Only Eligible Dependents

It is your responsibility to notify the PCA Financial Services Department if your family status changes and individuals you cover are no longer eligible.

If you are covering an ineligible dependent, you must pay federal and state taxes on the fair market value of benefits provided to that person. It can cost you quite a bit if you continue to cover an ineligible person!

Medicare Eligibility

If you are an active employee and you and/or your spouse are eligible for Medicare, you do **not** need to enroll in Medicare Part B while you are enrolled in the active state plan. The active state plan is primary. If you choose to enroll in Medicare Part B, you will pay a premium for that coverage. The state does not reimburse Medicare Part B premiums for employees or dependents enrolled in the active state plan.

Generally, you don't pay a premium to have Medicare Part A.

When your active employee state coverage ceases (for example, when you retire), you will have a limited time to sign up for Medicare Part B with no penalty. If you are eligible for the state's retiree plan, you will be required to enroll in Medicare Part B at that time. You must submit a copy of your Medicare card to the Office of the State Comptroller's Retirement Health Unit for reimbursement of your and/or your spouse's Medicare Part B premium.

Medical Coverage

You have the following medical plan options, administered by Anthem:

- NEW! State BlueCare Prime Plus (POS)
- State BlueCare Point of Enrollment (POE) Plus
- State BlueCare Point of Enrollment (POE)
- State BlueCare Point of Service (POS)
- State Preferred Point of Service (POS)*
- Out of Area (OOA)

* Closed to new enrollments.

Understanding the Plans

NEW! State BlueCare Prime Plus POS Plan

With the State BlueCare Prime Plus POS plan, you'll save on your premiums by only using the highest-quality doctors, specialists and locations across the state.

If you enroll in this plan, you must select a primary care physician (PCP) and use providers in the State BlueCare Prime Network to pay the least for covered services. Check **anthem.com/statect/find-care** to see if your current PCP or specialists are preferred providers with the plan.

Services received without a referral or from an out-ofnetwork provider are reimbursed at 70% of the allowable cost (after you pay the annual deductible). PCPs and specialists in the network can be identified in the Anthem provider lookup tool. PCPs participating in the network are encouraged to refer you to in-network providers when appropriate. Note: Hartford HealthCare facilities and doctors are not currently participating in the State BlueCare Prime Network.

State BlueCare and State Preferred* Point of Service (POS) Plans

With these plans, you can use in-network or out-ofnetwork providers. No referrals are necessary to receive care from in-network providers. Services received out-of-network may require prior authorization and are reimbursed at 80% of the allowable cost (after you pay the annual deductible).

* Closed to new enrollments.

State BlueCare Point of Enrollment (POE) Plan

This plan will only pay benefits if you receive care from a defined network of providers. Out-of-network care is only covered in an emergency. No referrals are necessary to visit an in-network provider.

State BlueCare Point of Enrollment (POE) Plus Plan

This plan will only pay benefits if you receive care from a defined network of providers. Out-of-network care is **only** covered in an emergency.

The main difference between this plan and the State BlueCare POE plan is that you must select a PCP to coordinate your care; referrals are required to see a specialist. You can designate any PCP who is in the network. For children, you may designate a pediatrician as their PCP. If you do not make a designation, the plan will designate a provider for you. For information on in-network PCPs and how to make a designation, contact Anthem.

Note: You do not need prior authorization for obstetrical or gynecological care from an in-network provider who specializes in obstetrics or gynecology. Certain procedures may require prior authorization. For a list of in-network providers specializing in obstetrics or gynecology, contact Health Navigator.

Allowable Charge.

If you visit an out-of-network provider, the allowable charge is the amount your plan would pay had you visited an in-network provider. When you visit an out-of-network provider, you are responsible for all charges above the allowable charge, up to that provider's usual charge for those services.



Oxford/UnitedHealthcare plans will NOT be offered starting October 1, 2020. If you're currently enrolled in an Oxford/UnitedHealthcare plan, you'll be automatically transitioned to an Anthem health plan with the same plan design. However, it's a good idea to review your plan options and consider if automatic enrollment is the right decision for you.

Medical Plans at a Glance

Here's how much you pay for covered services depending on the plan you're enrolled in and where you choose to receive care.

Benefit Features		State Blue	State BlueCare Prime Plus POS		State BlueCare POE PlusState BlueCare POS and State Preferred* POSState BlueCare POEOut of Area		erred* POS
		In-Network with PCP Referral	In-Network Without PCP Referral	Out-of- Network ¹	In-Network ONLY	In-Network	Out-of- Network ¹
	Individual	\$350 ²	\$1,00	00	\$350 ²	\$350 ²	\$300
Annual Deductible	Family	\$1,400²	\$4,00	00	\$350 each member² (\$1,400 maximum)	\$350 each member ² (\$1,400 maximum)	\$900
Annual Out-of-	Individual	\$3,000	\$5,00	00	\$2,000	\$2,000	\$2,000 (plus deductible)
Pocket Maximum	Family	\$6,000	\$10,0	00	\$4,000	\$4,000	\$4,000 (plus deductible)
Preadmission Authorization Concurrent R	ı/	By participating provider	By participati	ng provider	By participating provider	By participating provider	20% penalty (max. \$500) for no authorization
-	Outpatient Physician Visits, Walk-In Centers		30%	30%	Value Tier 1 Provider: Plan pays 100% Network of	Value Tier 1 Provider: Plan pays 100% Network of	20%
					Distinction Tier 2 Provider: \$15 copay**	Distinction Tier 2 Provider: \$15 copay**	
LiveHealth Or (telemedicine)		\$0 cc	opay	N/A	\$5 copay	\$5 copay	N/A
Preventive Ca	are	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Emergency C	are	\$250 copay ^{3, 4}	\$250 copay ^{3, 4}	\$250 copay ^{3, 4}	\$250 copay ³	\$250 copay ³	\$250 copay ³
Diagnostic X-Ray and Lab (prior authorization required for diagnostic imaging)		Preferred Provider: Plan pays 100% ⁴	Preferred Provider: Plan pays 100% ⁴	40% ⁴	Preferred Provider: Plan pays 100%	Preferred Provider: Plan pays 100%	40%²
		Other location: 20% ⁴	Other location: 20% ⁴		Other location: 20%	Other location: 20%	
Preadmission Testing		Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Inpatient Phy authorization		Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Inpatient Hos authorization		Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%

¹ You pay coinsurance plus 100% of any amount your provider bills over the allowable charge.

² Waived for HEP-compliant members

³ Waived if admitted

⁴ No referral required

* Closed to new enrollments

** \$0 copay for Preferred Providers. See page 9 for more details.

Benefit Features	State BlueCare Prime Plus POS		State BlueCare POE Plus State BlueCare POE	State Pref	e BlueCare POS and ate Preferred* POS Out of Area	
reatures	In-Network with PCP Referral	In-Network Without PCP Referral	Out-of- Network ¹	In-Network ONLY	In-Network	Out-of- Network ¹
Outpatient Surgical Facility (prior authorization required)	Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Ambulance (if emergency)	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%
Short-Term Rehabilitation and Physical Therapy (prior authorization may be required)	Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%, up to 60 inpatient days, 30 outpatient days per condition per year
Routine Eye Exam (one exam per year)	\$15 copay ⁵ **	\$15 copay ⁵ **	\$15 copay⁵**	\$15 copay ^{5**}	\$15 copay ⁵ **	50%
Audiology Screening (one exam per year)	\$15 copay	\$15 copay	\$15 copay	\$15 copay	\$15 copay	20%
Mental Health/Substance Abu	Ise					
Inpatient (prior authorization required)	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Outpatient	Plan pays 100% ⁴	Plan pays 100%	30% ⁴	\$15 copay	\$15 copay	20%
Family Planning (prior author	ization may be requ	ired)				
Vasectomy	Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Tubal Ligation	Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Durable Medical Equipment (prior authorization may be required)	Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Hearing Aids (limited to one set of hearing aids within a 36-month period)	Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Prosthetics (prior authorization may be required)	Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%
Skilled Nursing Facility (prior authorization required)	Plan pays 100%	30%	30%, up to 60 days per year	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%, up to 60 days per year
Home Health Care (prior authorization required)	Plan pays 100%	30%, up to 200	visits per year	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%, up to 200 visits per year
Hospice (prior authorization required)	Plan pays 100%	30%	30%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%	20%, up to 60 days
² Waived for HEP-compliant memb	ed for HEP-compliant members * Closed to new enrollments					

² Waived for HEP-compliant members

³ Waived if admitted

⁵ Health Enhancement Program participants have \$15 copay waived once every two years.

** \$0 copay for Preferred Providers. See page 9 for more details.

Making Your Decision

All the medical plans cover the same medical benefits, services and supplies. What you pay for covered services and where you can go to receive care differ, including referral requirements and provider networks.

When making your plan decision, consider:

- Network: With the State BlueCare Prime Plus POS plan, you must receive and follow referrals from your selected primary care physician (PCP) for specialty and other non-emergency care to receive the reduced in-network cost share. PCPs participating in this plan are encouraged to refer you to an in-network specialist (providers that meet the state's rigorous standards for delivering quality, cost-effective care). The POS, Preferred POS, and Out of Area plans provide in-network and out-of-network coverage. The State BlueCare POE Plus and State BlueCare POE plans only pay for services received in-network, unless you need care due to an emergency.
- **Primary Care Physicians:** The State BlueCare POE Plus and State BlueCare Prime Plus POS plans require you to choose a PCP who will coordinate your care. The other plans do not require you to designate a PCP.
- **Referrals:** The State BlueCare POE Plus and State BlueCare Prime Plus POS plans require you to get a referral before you receive care from a specialist. The other plans do not require referrals; however, you will pay more if you are enrolled in the State BlueCare Prime Plus POS plan and do not get a referral.
- **Costs:** There are differences in what you pay when you receive care, depending on whether you choose a Network of Distinction provider, another in-network provider or an out-of-network provider. Review the table on pages 6 and 7 to see a comparison. What you pay in premiums varies significantly depending on the plan you select and whom you choose to cover.

You're covered anywhere you go!

If you travel outside Connecticut but are in the U.S., you have access to doctors and hospitals across the country with the BlueCard[®] program. If you travel outside the U.S., you have access to providers in nearly 200 countries with the Blue Cross Blue Shield Global[®] Core program. Call 800-810-2583 to learn more about both programs. If you're outside the U.S., call collect at 804-673-1177.

Using Your Benefits

The state has provided some programs and tools that you can use to maximize your benefits and get help making important health care decisions.

Care Compass

Care Compass is your one-stop shop for everything related to your state benefits! This website has all the information you need—including benefit charts, plan documents, carrier contact information and more! Visit **CareCompass.CT.gov** today.

Health Navigator

Health Navigator is here to take the confusion out of benefits. You and any enrolled dependents can contact Health Navigator for help understanding your benefits, finding a doctor, and dealing with the complexities of health care. The support you'll receive from Health Navigator will be highly coordinated with the member services teams at Anthem, Cigna, CVS Caremark and Care Management Solutions to make it easier for you to navigate your benefits and access the right care for you.

Health Navigator has an online search tool you can use to find the best-quality providers and locations for certain procedures. If you need a procedure now or in the future, contact Health Navigator or use the online Health Navigator Search Tool. When you've found a location or provider, you can call Health Navigator, and they'll make an appointment for you!

To use the online Health Navigator Search Tool:

- 1. Visit healthadvocate.com/stateofconnecticut.
- Enter your condition or procedure in the search engine.
- **3.** Select a provider. Network of Distinction providers (see page 9) are listed and indicated with a silver star. If a cash incentive is available for using a certain provider, it will be listed next to the doctor's or location's name. The highest-quality Network of Distinction providers and facilities are labeled as "Centers of Excellence" and will be marked with a gold trophy. The largest incentives are available for receiving care at a Center of Excellence where available.
- **4.**Call Health Navigator to confirm your choice or ask any follow-up questions. Health Navigator will even make your appointment for you!

Chat with a professional Navigator 24 hours a day, seven days a week at 866-611-8005. Or use the online chat tool by clicking the Health Navigator button on **CareCompass.CT.gov**.

Networks of Distinction

Under this new program, we give you access to highquality, cost-effective doctors and care locations that offer comprehensive care for many common medical tests and procedures, and health conditions. Those offering the highest quality will be noted as Centers of Excellence. Networks of Distinction can coordinate your care throughout your entire treatment process. This means your doctors are more informed to help you get the best care possible.

Find a Provider. Use the online Health Navigator Search Tool to search by location, doctor and procedure. When you use the online tool, the providers and locations with the highest-quality care standards have been designated as Centers of Excellence and will be listed first, indicated with a gold trophy. Other Networks of Distinction will follow, marked with a silver star. You can also call Health Navigator for assistance finding a Network of Distinction location or provider, or use the Find Care tool on **anthem.com/statect** or the Sydney Health mobile app.

Earn Incentives. If you use a Network of Distinction provider for a qualifying procedure, you can earn a cash reward! When you use the best-quality providers, you get the best care, and the state plan is more efficient because the risk of complications is reduced. If you visit a Center of Excellence, you can earn a greater incentive. Here's a list of some of the procedures eligible for a cash reward when performed by a Network of Distinction provider:

- Hip, shoulder and knee surgery
- Bariatric surgery
- Cardiac procedures
- Colonoscopies
- Prenatal care and delivery

Note: The amount of the reward varies by procedure and location. You can find more information by using the online Health Navigator Search Tool or by contacting Health Navigator.

Travel Reimbursement. Depending on the distance traveled to obtain care from a Network of Distinction provider, you may be eligible for travel benefits. Contact Health Navigator to determine eligibility.

Site of Service Providers

You pay nothing—\$0 copay—for lab tests, x-rays and other imaging services (such as MRIs and CT scans) if you visit a preferred Site of Service provider. To find a Site of Service provider, contact Anthem, or use the Find Care tool on **anthem.com/statect** or the Sydney Health app.

Sydney Health Mobile App

With the Sydney Health app, you can find everything you need to know about your benefits in one place. Plus, you can now connect with the Sydney Care[™] app for a convenient way to get health answers and find affordable care when you need it. Services include:

- Verify Coverage. Use Sydney Health to check your benefits, review your claims and ID cards, and get fast answers using the interactive chat feature.
- My Health Dashboard. Complete the health assessment to get a personalized action plan based on your wellness priorities. Then, watch videos and read tips to live healthy, and find nutritionist-approved recipes and meal plans.
- **Symptom Checker.** Not feeling well? See how others with similar symptoms were treated using an interactive chat. In just minutes you'll have reliable, personalized results.
- Virtual Visits. Connect with a doctor who can help diagnose your condition, prescribe medications, and recommend follow-up care. You'll pay nothing for texting a doctor and only a \$5 copay for a video chat.
- **Care Market.** Find and schedule in-person appointments with select Network of Distinction care providers.

Download the Sydney Health app from the App Store or Google Play and follow the prompts to access Sydney Care. You'll be able to check your symptoms and text or video chat with a doctor in minutes.

LiveHealth Online

LiveHealth Online connects you with a board-certified doctor for a video visit using your smartphone, tablet or computer. Doctors can answer your questions and assess illnesses such as sore throats, ear infections, pinkeye and the flu. They can even send a prescription to your pharmacy, if needed.

Get started by going to **livehealthonline.com** or downloading the free app. Spanish-speaking members can use Cuidado Médico through LiveHealth Online to schedule a video visit with a Spanish-speaking doctor, 7 a.m. to 11 p.m., seven days a week.

Make an appointment for mental health-related concerns.

LiveHealth Online therapists are available seven days a week to discuss anxiety, depression, stress, grief, eating disorders and other mental health concerns. Call 844-784-8409 to schedule an appointment.



Health Enhancement Program

The Health Enhancement Program (HEP) helps you and your family stay healthy. Plus, it saves you and the state money on health care costs. It's your choice to participate, but there are many advantages to doing so.

Save Money by Participating!

When you and all your enrolled family members participate in HEP, you will pay lower monthly premiums and have no in-network deductible for the plan year.

If you or an enrolled family member has one of the five chronic conditions listed to the right and you complete the HEP requirements, you may receive a \$100 incentive. Also, you can save money on prescription drugs to treat your chronic condition.

How to Enroll

Current Employees

If you are not currently participating in HEP, you can enroll online during Open Enrollment through MyPaychex. com in the Benefits tab.

Those who met all the 2019 HEP requirements will be automatically re-enrolled for 2020/2021.

New Employees

If you are a new employee, HEP enrollment is completed online when you make your benefit elections. You will not have to meet HEP requirements until the first calendar year in which you are enrolled in coverage as of January 1. If you do not wish to participate in HEP, you can disenroll during Open Enrollment.

2020 Requirements

HEP enrollees and all family members must get age-appropriate wellness exams and early diagnosis screenings, such as colorectal cancer screenings, Pap tests, mammograms and vision exams.

Visit the HEP online portal at **cthep.com** to find out whether you have outstanding dental, medical or other requirements. In an ordinary year, these requirements would need to be completed by **December 31, 2020**. However, due to health care system disruptions caused by COVID-19, HEP monitoring will be delayed. Further notice will be provided to all employees after further evaluation. Those with chronic conditions can complete certain requirements online. Care Management Solutions, the administrator for HEP may also be reached by phone at 877-687-1448.

Chronic Condition Requirements

You and/or that family member will be required to participate in a disease education and counseling program if you have:

- Diabetes (type 1 or 2)
- Asthma
- COPD
- Heart disease/heart failure
- Hyperlipidemia (high cholesterol)
- Hypertension (high blood pressure)

You will receive free office visits and reduced pharmacy copays for treatments related to your condition. Your household must meet all preventive and chronic requirements to be compliant.





Preventive	Age						
Screenings	0 – 5	6 – 17	18 – 24	25 – 29	30 – 39	40 – 49	50+
Preventive Visit	1 per year	1 every other year	Every 3 years	Every 3 years	Every 3 years	Every 2 years	Every year
Vision Exam	N/A	N/A	Every 7 years	Every 7 years	Every 7 years	Every 4 years	50 – 64: Every 3 years
							65+: Every 2 years
Dental Cleanings*	N/A	At least 1 per year	At least 1 per year	At least 1 per year			
Cholesterol Screening	N/A	N/A	Every 5 years (20+)	Every 5 years	Every 5 years	Every 5 years	Every 5 years
Breast Cancer Screening (Mammogram)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	1 screening between age 45 and 49**	As recommended by physician
Cervical Cancer Screening (Pap Smear)	N/A	N/A	Every 3 years (21+)	Every 3 years	Every 3 years, or Pap and HPV combo screening every 5 years	Every 3 years, or Pap and HPV combo screening every 5 years	50 – 65: Every 3 years, or Pap and HPV combo screening every 5 years
Colorectal Cancer Screening	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	Colonoscopy every 10 years, annual fecal immunochemical test and fecal occult blood test to age 70, or Cologuard screening every 3 years

* Dental cleanings are required for family members who are participating in one of the state dental plans.

** Or as recommended by your physician



Help Managing Diabetes

Manage your diabetes with help from the Livongo diabetes management program. Monitor your conditions through digitally connected devices, receive health nudges, and access 24/7 digital and live coaching, all from home, all at no cost through the state plan. Visit **CareCompass.CT.gov** to learn more.



More Information

Care Management Solutions offers a website with tips and tools to help you manage your health and your HEP requirements. Visit **cthep.com** to:

- View HEP preventive and chronic requirements and download HEP forms
- Check your HEP preventive and chronic compliance status
- Complete your chronic condition education and counseling compliance requirement
- Access a library of health information and articles
- Set and track personal health goals
- Exchange messages with HEP Nurse Case Managers and professionals

You can also call Care Management Solutions to speak with a representative.

Care Management Solutions **cthep.com** 877-687-1448 Monday – Thursday, 8:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m. Friday, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

If it is your first time on the participant portal, you will need to create an account. All participants over the age of 18 will need to create their own account.

Prescription Drug Coverage

Your prescription drug coverage is administered by CVS Caremark. Prescription benefits are the same no matter which medical plan you choose.

There is a 4-tier copay structure. The amount you pay depends on whether your prescription is for a generic drug, a brand name drug listed on CVS Caremark's preferred drug list (the formulary), or a non-preferred brand name drug.

Here's what you'll pay for covered prescription drugs, depending on the tier and where you choose to fill your prescription.

	Maintenance Drugs 90-Day Supply	Non- Maintenance Drugs 30-Day Supply
Tier 1: Preferred generic	\$5	\$5
Tier 2: Non- preferred generic	\$10	\$10
Tier 3: Preferred brand name	\$25	\$25
Tier 4: Non- preferred brand name	\$40*	\$40*

 * \$25 if your physician certified the non-preferred brand name drug is medically necessary

If you are enrolled in the Health Enhancement Program, you'll pay lower copays for medications used to treat chronic conditions covered by HEP's disease education and counseling programs:

- Tier 1: \$0 copay
- Tier 2: \$5 copay
- Tier 3: \$12.50 copay

You'll pay nothing for medications and supplies used to treat diabetes (type 1 and type 2).

To check which copay amount applies to your prescriptions, visit **Caremark.com**. Once you register, click **Look up Copay** and **Formulary Status**. Type the name of the drug you want to look up, and you will see the cost and copay amounts for that drug as well as alternatives.

Brand Name Drugs

A drug's tier is determined by CVS Caremark's Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee. The committee may change the tier placement of a drug if new generics have become available, new clinical studies have been released, new brand name drugs have become available, etc. If your doctor believes a non-preferred brand name drug is medically necessary for you, they will need to complete the Coverage Exception Request form (available at **CareCompass.CT.gov**) and fax it to CVS Caremark. If approved, you will pay the preferred brand copay amount.

Mandatory Generics

Prescriptions will be filled automatically with a generic drug if one is available, unless your doctor completes CVS Caremark's Coverage Exception Request form and it is approved. Note: It is not enough for your doctor to note "dispense as written" on your prescription; a separate form is required. If you request a brand name drug instead of a generic alternative without obtaining a coverage exception, you will pay the generic drug copay PLUS the difference in cost between the brand and generic drug.

90-Day Supply for Maintenance Medications

If you or your family member takes a maintenance medication, you are required to get your maintenance prescriptions as 90-day fills. You can get your first 30-day fill of a new medication at any participating pharmacy. After that, your two choices are:

- Receive your medication through the CVS Caremark mail-order pharmacy, or
- Fill your medication at a pharmacy that participates in the state's Maintenance Drug Network (see the list of participating pharmacies on **CareCompass.CT.gov**).

A list of maintenance medications is posted at **CareCompass.CT.gov**.

Maintenance Medications

Maintenance drugs are prescriptions commonly used to treat conditions that are considered chronic or long term.

CVS Caremark Specialty Pharmacy

Certain chronic and/or genetic conditions require special pharmacy products (often injected or infused). The specialty pharmacy program provides these prescriptions along with the supplies, equipment and care coordination needed to take the medication. Call 800-237-2767 for information.

Contact CVS Caremark

If you have questions about your prescription drug benefits, contact Health Navigator at 866-611-8005.

Dental Plan Coverage

Cigna is the administrator for all State of Connecticut dental plans:

- **Basic Plan.** This plan allows you to visit any dentist or dental specialist without a referral.
- Enhanced Plan. This plan will pay benefits for services received in- and out-of-network, without a referral. However, your out-of-pocket expenses may be higher if you see a dentist who is not part of the Cigna PPO Network. The Enhanced Plan pays for covered dental services based on the maximum allowable charge, which is the amount your plan would pay had you visited an in-network dentist. When you visit an out-of-network dentist, you are responsible for all charges above the maximum allowable charge, up to that dentist's usual charge for those services.
- **DHMO Plan.** This plan provides dental services only from a defined network of dentists. You must select a primary care dentist (PCD) to coordinate all care, and referrals are required for all specialist services.

Dental coverage ends for dependent children at age 19 (unless disabled*).

Consider the DHMO Plan

The DHMO network continues to grow! Did you know that many retirees enrolled in the Basic and Enhanced plans are already seeing DHMO providers? Be sure to check your provider's status at **cigna.com/stateofct**. Enrolling in the DHMO could help you save money.

	Basic Plan (any dentist)	Enhanced Plan (network)	DHMO Plan (network only)
Annual Deductible	None	Individual: \$25 Family: \$75	None
Annual Maximum	None	\$3,000 per person (excluding orthodontia)	None
Exams, Cleanings and X-Rays	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 100%, deductible does not apply ¹	Plan pays 100%
Periodontal Maintenace ²	20% (if enrolled in HEP plan pays 100%)	Plan pays 100% ¹	Copay ³
Periodontal Root Scaling and Planing ²	50%	20%	Copay ³
Other Periodontal Services	50%	20%	Copay ³
Simple Restoration			
Fillings	20%	20%	Copay ³
Oral Surgery	33%	20%	Copay ³
Major Restorations			
Crowns	33%	33%	Copay ³
Dentures, Fixed Bridges	Not covered ⁴	50%	Copay ³
Implants	Not covered⁴	50% (plan pays benefits up to \$500)	Copay ³
Orthodontia	Not covered⁴	50%, plan pays maximum of \$1,500 per person per lifetime⁵	Copay ³

Here's what you'll pay for covered dental services, depending on the plan you elect.

* For your disabled child to remain an eligible dependent, he or she must be certified as disabled by Anthem before he or she becomes age 19 (for dental benefits; age 26 applies only for medical benefits). As a result of the COVID-19 crisis, those turning 19 in 2020 will have their coverage extended until December 31, 2020.

² If you're enrolled in the Health Enhancement Program (HEP), frequency limits and cost share are applicable.

³ Contact Cigna at 800-244-6224 for patient copay amounts.

⁴ While not covered, you will get the discounted rate on these services if you visit a

network dentist, unless prohibited by state law (see page 15 for details). ⁵ Benefits are prorated over the course of treatment.

¹ In the Enhanced plan, be sure to use an in-network dentist to ensure your care is covered 100%; with out-of-network dentists, you will be subject to balance billing if your dentist charges more than the maximum allowable charge.





Your dental benefits are improving starting October 1, 2020! Here's how:

Enhanced Plan

- Fluoride age limit increased to 19 years old
- No age limit on sealants
- Exparel (non-opioid pain management) covered at 67% by the plan, allowable for persons over age 18

Basic Plan

The Basic plan will have all the above improvements, plus:

- Occlusal guards covered at 67% by the plan
- No periodontal maximum (previously \$500)
- Brush biopsy covered at 80% by the plan

Oral Health Integration Program

Employees (including dependents) enrolled in a State of Connecticut dental plan are eligible for Cigna's Oral Health Integration Program (OHIP). OHIP provides 100% reimbursement of copays for select covered services to members with qualifying medical conditions.

If you are pregnant or have a qualifying medical condition (heart disease, stroke, diabetes, maternity, chronic kidney disease, organ transplants, and head and neck cancer radiation), you are encouraged to enroll in this program to reduce your costs. More information can be found at **CareCompass.CT.gov**.

Savings on Non-Covered Services

Many of the Basic and Enhanced plan Cigna PPO network dentists have agreed to offer their discounted fees to you and your covered dependents for non-covered services. These savings may also apply to services that would not be covered because you reached your annual benefit maximum or due to other plan limitations such as frequency, age or missing tooth limitations.

You must visit a network dentist to receive these discounts. And you should verify the procedure is listed on the dentist's fee schedule before receiving treatment. You are responsible for paying the negotiated fee directly to the dentist.

Discounts on non-covered services may not be available in all states. Certain dentists may not offer discounts on non-covered services. Be sure to check with your dental care professional or contact Cigna customer service before receiving care to determine if these discounts will apply to you.

Pretreatment Estimates

Before starting extensive dental procedures where charges may exceed \$200, your dentist may submit a pretreatment estimate to the plan. You can also help to determine the amount you will be required to pay for a specific procedure at **CareCompass.CT.gov**.

2020/2021 Payroll Deductions

Biweekly Payroll Deductions

October 1, 2020, Through June 30, 2021

If you do not enroll in HEP, you'll pay an additional \$46.15 per paycheck for the cost of coverage.

Probate Judges & Employees

Medical Plans	Employee	Employee + 1	Family
State BlueCare Prime Plus POS	\$38.12	\$228.73	\$324.04
State BlueCare POE Plus	\$39.51	\$244.32	\$346.11
State BlueCare POE	\$43.39	\$249.55	\$353.53
State BlueCare POS	\$51.62	\$247.05	\$349.98
State Preferred POS*	\$95.58	\$326.07	\$461.93
Out of Area	\$52.90	\$330.51	\$468.23

Dental Plans	Employee	Employee + 1	Family
Basic	\$0.00	\$18.53	\$18.53
Enhanced	\$0.00	\$15.96	\$15.96
DHMO	\$0.00	\$6.43	\$9.11

Closed to new enrollment

Frequently Asked Questions

Where can I learn more about what the state health insurance plan covers?

All medical plans offered by the State of Connecticut cover the same services and supplies. For questions, please contact a state Health Navigator: 866-611-8005.

Can I enroll after Open Enrollment or when I'm first eligible for coverage, or switch plans midyear?

The elections you make at Open Enrollment or when you're first eligible for coverage are in effect through June 30, 2021. If you have a qualifying status change, you may be able to change your elections midyear (see page 2).

If you decline coverage now, you may enroll during any future Open Enrollment period or if you experience certain qualifying status changes.

Can I enroll myself in one option and my eligible family member in another?

No. You and the family members you enroll must all have the same medical option and/or the same dental option. However, you can enroll certain family members in medical and different family members in dental. For example, you can enroll yourself and your child for medical, but yourself only for dental. To enroll an eligible family member in a plan, you must enroll as well.

My spouse and I will be eligible for Medicare soon. Should I sign up for Medicare? What else do I need to do?

If you are enrolled in the active health insurance plan as an active employee or a dependent of an active employee, you don't need to sign up for Medicare Part B. The state employee active health plan is primary, and Medicare is secondary as long as you're enrolled as an active employee. This means that Medicare will only pay for services after your employee plan has paid.

Medicare Part A does not typically have a premium cost associated with enrollment.

When you and your spouse (if applicable) cease enrollment in the active employee state plan (i.e., upon retirement), you will have a limited time to sign up for Medicare Part B with no penalty.

How do I know which plan is best for me?

This is a question only you can answer. Each plan offers different advantages. To help choose which plan might be best for you, compare the plan-to-plan features in the chart on pages 6 and 7 for medical and page 14 for dental. You can also contact Health Navigator for help choosing the best medical plan for you and your enrolled family members.

Can my children be covered under my dental plan until age 26, like they can under my medical plan?

The Affordable Care Act extended benefits for children until age 26 only under medical and prescription drug coverage, not dental. Dental coverage ends for dependent children at age 19 (unless they are disabled*).

* For your disabled child to remain an eligible dependent, they must be certified as disabled by your medical insurance carrier before they turn age 19 for dental benefits or age 26 for medical benefits. Contact Anthem's Enhanced Dedicated Member Services team at 800-922-2232 for information.

Do any of the dental plans cover orthodontia for adults?

Yes, the Enhanced plan and DHMO both cover orthodontia for adults up to certain limits. The Enhanced plan pays \$1,500 per person (adult or child) per lifetime. The DHMO requires a copay. The Basic plan does not cover orthodontia for adults or children.

If I participate in HEP, are my regular dental cleanings 100% covered?

Yes, up to two per year. However, if you are in the Enhanced plan, you must use an in-network dentist to get the full coverage. If you go out of network, you may be subject to balance billing (if your outof-network dentist charges more than the maximum allowable charge). In the DHMO you must use an innetwork dentist, or your exam won't be covered at all.



Non-Discrimination Policy

The Office of the State Comptroller complies with applicable federal civil rights laws and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability or sex. The Office of the State Comptroller does not exclude people or treat them differently because of race, color, national origin, age, disability or sex.

The Office of the State Comptroller:

- Provides free aids and services to people with disabilities to communicate effectively with us, such as:
 - Qualified sign language interpreters
 - Written information in other formats (large print, audio, accessible electronic formats, other formats)
 - Provides free language services to people whose primary language is not English, such as:
 - Qualified interpreters
 - Information written in other languages

If you need these services, contact Ginger Frasca, Principal Human Resources Specialist.

If you believe that the Office of the State Comptroller has failed to provide these services or discriminated in another way on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability or sex, you can file a grievance with:

Ginger Frasca, Principal Human Resources Specialist 165 Capitol Avenue Hartford, CT 06106 860-702-3340 Fax 860-702-3324

Ginger.Frasca@ct.gov

You can file a grievance in person or by mail, fax or email. If you need help filing a grievance, Ginger Frasca, Principal Human Resources Specialist. is available to help you.

You can also file a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights, electronically through the Office for Civil Rights Complaint Portal, available at **ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf**, or by mail or phone at:

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 200 Independence Avenue, SW Room 509F, HHH Building Washington, DC 20201 800-368-1019, 800-537-7697 (TDD)

Complaint forms are available at hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html.

Español (Spanish)	ATENCIÓN: si habla español, tiene a su disposición servicios gratuitos de asistencia lingüística. Llame al 1-860-702-3340.
繁體中文 (Chinese)	注意:如果您使用繁體中文,您可以免費獲得語言援助服務。請致電 1-860-702-3340 。
Tiếng Việt (Vietnamese)	CHÚ Ý: Nếu bạn nói Tiếng Việt, có các dịch vụ hỗ trợ ngôn ngữ miễn phí dành cho bạn. Gọi số 1-860-702-3340.
Tagalog (Tagalog – Filipino)	PAUNAWA: Kung nagsasalita ka ng Tagalog, maaari kang gumamit ng mga serbisyo ng tulong sa wika nang walang bayad. Tumawag sa 1-860-702-3340.
Русский (Russian)	ВНИМАНИЕ: Если вы говорите на русском языке, то вам доступны бесплатные услуги перевода. Звоните 1-860-702-3340.
Kreyòl Ayisyen (French Creole)	ATANSYON: Si w pale Kreyòl Ayisyen, gen sèvis èd pou lang ki disponib gratis pou ou. Rele 1-860-702-3340.
Français (French)	ATTENTION: Si vous parlez français, des services d'aide linguistique vous sont proposés gratuitement. Appelez le 1-860-702-3340.
Polski (Polish)	UWAGA: Jeżeli mówisz po polsku, możesz skorzystać z bezpłatnej pomocy językowej. Zadzwoń pod numer 1-860-702-3340.
Português (Portuguese)	ATENÇÃO: Se fala português, encontram-se disponíveis serviços linguísticos, grátis. Ligue para 1-860-702-3340.
Italiano (Italian)	ATTENZIONE: In caso la lingua parlata sia l'italiano, sono disponibili servizi di assistenza linguistica gratuiti. Chiamare il numero 1-860-702-3340.
Deutsch (German)	ACHTUNG: Wenn Sie Deutsch sprechen, stehen Ihnen kostenlos sprachliche Hilfsdienstleistungen zur Verfügung. Rufnummer: 1-860-702-3340.
हिंदी (Hindi)	ध्यान दें: यदि आप हिंदी बोलते हैं तो आपके लिए मुफ्त में भाषा सहायता सेवाएं उपलब्ध हैं।
- · · ·	1-860-702-3340 पर कॉल करें।
(Urdu) أردُو	خبر دار : اگر آپ ار دو بولتے ہیں، تو آپ کو زبان کی مدد کی خدمات مفت میں دستیاب ہیں ۔ کال کریں .1-860-702-3340
Shqip (Albanian)	KUJDES: Nëse flitni shqip, për ju ka në dispozicion shërbime të asistencës gjuhësore, pa pagesë. Telefononi në 1-860-702-3340.
λληνικά (Greek)	ΠΡΟΣΟΧΗ: Αν μιλάτε ελληνικά, στη διάθεσή σας βρίσκονται υπηρεσίες γλωσσικής υποστήριξης, οι οποίες παρέχονται δωρεάν. Καλέστε 1-860-702-3340.

Your Benefit Resources

Contact Health Navigator for help understanding your benefits, finding a doctor, and dealing with the complexities of the health care. They should be your first call when you have a benefits-related question. Phone: 866-611-8005 Website:**CareCompass.CT.gov**

Vendor	Website	Phone
General Benefit Questions	CareCompass.CT.gov	866-611-8005
Health Enhancement Program (HEP) Care Management Solutions	cthep.com	877-687-1448
Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield Enhanced Dedicated Member Services	CareCompass.CT.gov or anthem.com/statect	800-922-2232
CVS Caremark	CareCompass.CT.gov	800-318-2572
Cigna	CareCompass.CT.gov	800-244-6224



Healthcare Policy & Benefit Services Division Office of the State Comptroller 165 Capitol Avenue Hartford, CT 06106

